A Member of the ECIDA Financing and Development Group 6

1.0
2.0

3.0

4.0

5.0

INDUSTRIAL LAND DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION

Buffalo and Erie County Industrial Land Development Corporation
Board of Directors Meeting

September 28, 2022
@ 12:30 p.m.

701 Ellicott Street, Center of Excellence in Bioinformatics and Life Sciences (CBLS)

The Event Space/Conference Room B2-205, located on the 2nd floor, Buffalo, New York 14203

Call to Order

Approval of Minutes

2.1

Minutes of the July 27, 2022 Meeting of the Board of Directors (Action Item) (Pages 2-4)

Reports / Action Items / Information Items:

3.1
3.2

33
34

3.5

Financial Report (Informational) (Pages 5-8)

Finance & Audit Committee Update

a) 2023 Budget Timetable (Informational) (Page 9)

b) Review of 2023 Proposed Budget (Informational) (Pages 10-13)

¢) Professional Auditing Services Recommendation (Action Item) (Pages 14-17)

Loan Status Report (Informational) (Page 18)

Approval of Resolution for Renaissance Commerce Park (RCP) Odell & Ridge Road Sewer &
Water Extensions RFP Award (Action Item) (Pages 19-23)

Approval of Resolution for Sucro Rail Siding Licensing Agreement (Action Item) (Pages 24-40)

Management Team Report:

4.1

Adjournment - Next Meeting October 26, 2022 at 12:30 p.m.

95 Perry Street, Suite 403 » Buffalo, New York 14203 « ph. 716.856.6525 ¢ fx. 716.856.6754 www.ecidany.com



Draft
Subject to Board Approval

MINUTES OF THE MEETING
OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
OF THE

BUFFALO AND ERIE COUNTY INDUSTRIAL

MEETING:

LIVE STREAMED:

PRESENT:

EXCUSED:

OTHERS PRESENT:

GUESTS:

LAND DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION
(ILDC)

July 27, 2022

This meeting is being live-streamed and made accessible on the Erie
County Industrial Development Agency website at www.ecidany.com.

Denise Abbott, Hon. April Baskin, Hon. Howard Johnson, Richard
Lipsitz, Jr. and Hon. Mark C. Poloncarz

Hon. Byron W. Brown and Hon. Maria Whyte

John Cappellino, President & CEO; Beth O’Keefe, Vice President of
Operations; Mollie Profic, Chief Financial Officer/Assistant Secretary;
Atiga Abidi, Assistant Treasurer; Gerald Manhard, Chief Lending
Officer/Assistant Secretary; Grant Lesswing, Director of Business
Development; Andrew Federick, Business Development Officer, Soma
Hawramee, Compliance Portfolio Manager; Brian Krygier, Director of
Information Technology; Carrie Hocieniec, Operations Assistant; Sean
Fallon, Project Manager; Robbie Ann McPherson, Director of
Marketing & Communications; Pat Smith, Senior Bookkeeper; Lori
Szewczyk, Director of Grants; Laurie Hendrix, Administrative
Coordinator and Robert G. Murray, Esq., General Counsel/Harris
Beach PLLC

Zachary Evans, Erie County; Alex Carducci and Lisa Hicks on behalf
of the City of Buffalo

There being a quorum present at 1:08 p.m., the Meeting of the Board of Directors of the
Buffalo and Erie County Industrial Land Development Corporation was called to order by Chair

Poloncarz.

MINUTES

Mr. Lipsitz moved and Mr. Johnson seconded to approve of the June 22, 2022 minutes.
Mr. Poloncarz called for the vote and the minutes were unanimously approved.

Page 1 of 3



REPORTS / ACTION ITEMS / INFORMATION ITEMS

Financial Report. Ms. Profic presented the June 2022 financial report. The balance sheet
shows the month ended with total assets of $17.6M. Cash decreased and loans receivable
increased during the month. Liabilities are mainly deferred grant revenue of $9.1M. Net assets
total $8.1M. Five loans under the County Microloan program closed during the month. The June
income statement shows $171,000 of revenue, mainly $170,000 received for loans under the
County’s Microloan program. There were also $13,000 of expenses and $2,000 of special
project expenses, resulting in net income of $156,000 in June. The year to date income
statement shows revenues of $461,000 and expenses of $174,000. Included in this figure is
$100,000 of bond administrative fee revenue that was subsequently paid to ECIDA under the
existing shared services agreement. Special project expenses of $31,000 lead to net income of
$256,000 so far in 2022. Mr. Poloncarz directed that the report be received and filed.

ILDC Loan Status Report. Mr. Manhard provided this report to members. Mr. Poloncarz
directed that the report be received and filed.

Approval of Funding Resolution for Signage and Wayfinding with Erie County for
Renaissance Commerce Park (“RCP”) and Contract to Construct Signage. Mr. Cappellino
described the signage plan for the RCP, including the RFP held to solicit bidders to construct and
install RCP road signage. Mr. Cappellino thanked Erie County for providing funding for the RCP
signage not to exceed $150,000.

Mr. Johnson moved and Mr. Lipsitz seconded to approve of the ILDC executing the
contract for the construction of signage and wayfinding for RCP as well as a related funding
agreement with Erie County. Mr. Poloncarz called for the vote, and the following resolution was
unanimously approved.

RESOLUTION OF THE BUFFALO AND ERIE COUNTY INDUSTRIAL
LAND DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION (“ILDC”) AUTHORIZING THE
ILDC TO ENTER INTO A CONTRACT WITH PINTO CONSTRUCTION
SERVICES FOR THE ACQUISITION AND INSTALLATION OF ENTRY
SIGNAGE AT THE RENAISSANCE COMMERCE PARK AND TO ENTER
INTO A GRANT FUNDING AGREEMENT WITH THE COUNTY OF ERIE
TO PROVIDE FUNDING FOR THE ACQUISITION AND INSTALLATION
OF SUCH ENTRY SIGNAGE AT THE RENAISSANCE COMMERCE PARK

Resolution for 2012A Cantalician Center for Learning. Inc. Consent to Sale of Indenture
Amendment. Mr. Cappellino described the request made by The Cantalician Center for Learning

Inc. (the “CCL”) to merge with and into Learning Disabilities Association of Western New
York, Inc. (“LDA”), and requesting the approval of the ILDC to execute amendments to certain
bond documents related to the same.

Ms. Abbott moved and Mr. Johnson seconded to approve of the merger between CCL

and LDA and authorize the Agency to execute amendments to bond documents related to same.
Mr. Poloncarz called for the vote, and the following resolution was unanimously approved.

Page 2 of 3



RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION OF CERTAIN
AMENDMENTS BY BUFFALO AND ERIE COUNTY INDUSTRIAL LAND-
DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION (THE “ISSUER”) TO (A) THE ISSUER’S
TAX-EXEMPT MULTI-MODE REVENUE BOND (CANTALICIAN CENTER
FOR LEARNING INC. PROJECT), SERIES 2012A ISSUED BY THE ISSUER
ON FEBRUARY 13, 2012 IN THE ORIGINAL PRINCIPAL AMOUNT OF
$9,525,000 AND (B) CERTAIN DOCUMENTS RELATED THERETO

MANAGEMENT TEAM REPORT

Mr. Cappellino informed members that RCP Parcel II-11 has been closed and sold to
Uniland for its warehouse facility project.

There being no further business to discuss, Mr. Poloncarz adjourned the meeting at
1:20 p.m.

Dated: July 27, 2022

Elizabeth A. O’Keefe, Secretary

Page 3 of 3



Industrial Land Development Corp.

Financial Statements
As of August 31, 2022




INDUSTRIAL LAND DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION ("ILDC")

Balance Sheet
August 31, 2022

August 2022 July 2022 December 2021
ASSETS:
Restricted Cash * $ 1,908,200 $ 2,034,511 $ 2,036,777
Grants Receivable 7,747,401 7,597,401 7,653,095
Loans Receivable, net 970,140 872,031 666,711
Prepaid Expenses 38,092 39,740 -
Prepaid Acquisition Costs 691,778 691,383 688,095
Total Loan Assets 11,355,611 11,235,067 11,044,678
Capital Assets 6,167,200 6,164,245 6,546,068
Total Assets 3 17,522,811 $ 17,399,312  $ 17,590,746
LIABILITIES & NET ASSETS:
Accounts Payable $ 52 § 12 8 22,740
Due to/(from) ECIDA 335,088 325,071 458,111
Other Liabilities 9,291,831 9,143,354 9,246,959
Total Liabilities 9,626,971 9,468,437 9,727,810
Restricted Fund Balance 7,895,839 7,930,875 7,862,936
Total Liabilities & Net Assets $ 17,522,811 $ 17,399,312  § 17,590,746
Loan Portfolio Summary: August 2022 July 2022 December 2021
# of Loans 33 30 22

* Cash is invested in interest bearing accounts at M&T Bank.
The maximum FDIC insured amount is $250,000 with the remainder collateralized
with government obligations by the financial institution.



INDUSTRIAL LAND DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION ("ILDC")
Income Statement
Month of August 2022

REVENUES:
Interest Income - Loans
Grant Income - Microloan Program
Proceeds from (Cost of) Land Sales
Other Income
Interest Income - Cash & Inv.
Total Revenues

EXPENSES:
Management Fee - ECIDA
Professional Services
Gerieral Office Expenses
Other Expenses
Total Expenses

SPECIAL PROJECT GRANTS:
Industrial Land Park - ESD
Industrial Land Park - ECIDA
Angola Ag Park - ECIDA Grant
Other grant revenue

Industrial Land Park grant reimbursement

Industrial Land Park costs
Angola Ag Park costs
Other grant expenses

NET INCOME/(LOSS):

* Represents an allocation of salary and benefit costs from the ECIDA based on time charged

Actual vs. Budget

Actual Budget Variance

$ 1,180 483 § 697

105,000 - 105,000
(1,954) 20,833 (22,788)

600 - 600

40 8 32

104,865 21,325 83,540

$ 10,000 10,000 § -

11,252 5417 5,835
(9] 17 (17)
(328) 2,748 (3,076)

20,924 18,181 2,743
- 291,875 (291,875)
- 8,333 (8,333)
- 8,333 (8,333)
1,526 50,612 (49,086)
(103,625) - (103,625)

(14,375) (303,958) 289,583

(977) (8,333) 7,357

(1,526) (51,779) 50,253
(118,977) (4,917) (114,060)
$ (35,036) (1,773) $  (33,263)

to ILDC. The amount booked is currently based on budget.



INDUSTRIAL LAND DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION ("ILDC")

income Statement
Year to Date: August 31, 2022

| Actual vs. Budget | [ Actual vs. Prior Year
Actual Budget Variance Actual Prior Year Varlance
REVENUES:
Interest Income - Loans $ 6,543 § 3,867 § 2,676 $ 6543 § 578 § 5965
Grant Income - Microloan Program 388,352 - 388,352 388,352 - 388,352
Proceeds from (Cost of) Land Sales (181,324) 166,667 (347,991) (181,324) - (181,324)
Other Income 178,300 - 178,300 178,300 5,250 173,050
Interest income - Cash & Inv. 95 67 30 95 161 (65)
Total Revenues 391,967 170,600 221,368 391,967 5,988 385,978
EXPENSES:
Management Fee - ECIDA $ 180,000 $ 80,000 100,000 $ 180,000 § 35,000 § 145,000
Professional Services 28,872 43,333 (14,462) 28,872 15,139 13,732
General Office Expenses 686 133 552 686 614 72
Other Expenses (174) 21,983 (22,158) (174) 1,389 (1,564)
Total Expenses 209,383 145,450 63,933 209,383 52,143 157,240
SPECIAL PROJECT GRANTS:
Industrial Land Park - ESD 55,682 2,335,000 (2,279,318) 55,682 22,166 33,517
Industrial Land Park - ECIDA 19,775 66,667 (46,891) 19,775 187,255 (167,480)
Angola Ag Park - ECIDA Grant 37,462 66,667 (29,204) 37,462 25,696 11,766
Other grant revenue 41,951 404,895 (362,944) 41,951 276,657 (234,706)
Industriat Land Park grant reimbursement (103,625) - (103,625) (103,625) - (103,625)
Industrial Land Park costs (148,688) (2,431,667) 2,282,979 (148,688) (178,204) 29,516
Angola Ag Park costs (10,287) (66,667) 56,380 (10,287) {22,113) 11,826
Other grant expenses (41,951) (414,228) 372,277 (41,951) (238,694) 196,743
(149,680) (39,333) (110,347) (149,680) 72,763 (222,443)
NET INCOME/(LOSS): $ 32904 % (14,183) $ 47,088 $ 32,904 3 26609 § 6,295

* Represents an allocation of salary and benefit costs from the ECIDA based on time charged
to ILDC. The amount booked is currently based on budget.



ERIE COUNTY INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY (ECIDA)
BUFFALO & ERIE COUNTY REGIONAL DEVELOPMENT CORP (RDC)
BUFFALO & ERIE COUNTY INDUSTRIAL LAND DEVELOPMENT CORP (ILDC)

2023 Budget Review Process

Date Description
July-August Review of draft 2023 budgets by ECIDA management.
(a) Prioritize any proposed budget requests for
initiatives.
(b) Formal budget requests compiled.
August 19 Finance & Audit Committee meeting — initial review of
proposed budgets.

September 23 Finance & Audit Committee meeting to discuss any
updates/recommend proposed budgets to Boards. (No
quorum.)

September 28 Review of 2023 draft budgets at Board meetings.

October 6 Board Q&A budget session #1 via Zoom (voluntary).
1:00 pm
October 7 Board Q&A budget session #2 in person (voluntary).
10:00 am
October 17 Adjustments to budget based on Board feedback (if
any) and Finance & Audit Committee recommendation
of final budgets.
October 26 Board meetings — action to approve final 2023 budgets.

November 1 Deadline for final approved budgets to be submitted to

the ABO.




Buffalo & Erie County

Industrial Land Development Corp
Proposed 2023 Budget

10




Industrial Land Development Corporation (ILDC)
2023 Budget + 3 Year Forecast

The Industrial Land Development Corporation (“ILDC”) consists of two sub-funds (Erie
County’s Business Development Fund (“BDF”) and a general fund. The ILDC
administers the BDF microloan fund on behalf of Erie County for HUD-eligible small
businesses that would not otherwise be able to obtain such financing from commercial
sources. The ILDC also issues tax-exempt bonds on behalf of various not-for-profit
organizations in Erie County.

A. Overview of Changes in 2023 Budget:

A summary of the key changes between the 2023 budget and the projected 2022 results:

® The Erie County BDF microloan fund was reprogrammed into a loan/grant
program in the wake of the COVID-19 pandemic, resulting in increased budgeted
loan interest income. New loans are funded with grant income from Erie County
passed through the ECIDA.

¢ The ECIDA Management Fee represents a fee charged by the ECIDA for services
that its employees provide, since ILDC has no employees of its own. The fee is
expected to increase by approximately $4,000 due to anticipated increases in
ECIDA staff salaries and benefit costs.

* Land owned by the ILDC at Renaissance Commerce Park is driving budgeted
increases in proceeds from land sales. Professional setvices consist of legal,
consulting, and auditing costs, and are budgeted to increase by about $16,000
(33%) in 2023. This is due to the legal costs associated with land owned and
environmental consulting costs anticipated in 2023. Development and marketing
costs are expected to increase in 2023 as well, with the intent to sell property that
is owned in both Lackawanna and Evans, NY.

¢ The Special Projects section of the budget relates to grants. ILDC expects to
recognize $2.6 million from Empire State Development in 2023 related to
infrastructure and road work at Renaissance Commerce Park. A total of $170,000
is budgeted to be used in 2023 for carrying costs related to owned properties,
which will be granted by ECIDA’s UDAG fund. Other grant revenue consists of
$283,000 for master planning at the ILDC’s Evans property.

B. Summary of Risk Factors impacting the 2023 Budget:

The following significant risk factors may influence the 2023 budget:

1. Due to numerous uncertainties, the value of collateral, guarantees, etc., the ILDC
may experience loan losses that are currently not included in the budget.

2. In the past, the ILDC has generated fee income from issuing tax-exempt debt.
These monies are received directly by ILDC and then paid to ECIDA. However,
due to the infrequent nature of these activities, and the uncertainty as to when
such transactions will occur, ILDC has not included any bond closings in the 2023
budget. It is possible a tax-exempt bond is issued within the next year and both
income and expenses will be recognized, accordingly.

11



BUFFALO & ERIE COUNTY INDUSTRIAL LAND DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION ("ILDC")
Proposed Budget for 2023

REVENUES:
Interest Income - Loans
Grant Income
Proceeds from Land Sales
Other Income
Interest Income - Cash & Investments
Total Revenues

EXPENSES:
ECIDA Management Fee*
Provision for Loan Losses
Professional Services
Development & Marketing Expenses
Other Expenses
Total Expenses

SPECIAL PROJECTS:
Industrial Land Park - ESD
Industrial Land Park - ECIDA
Angola Ag Park - ECIDA
Other grant revenue
Industrial Land Park grant reimbursement
Industrial Land Park grant costs
Angola Ag Park grant costs
Other grant expenses

NET INCOME/(LOSS) BEFORE DEPRECIATION:
Depreciation

NET INCOME/(LOSS):

* Represents an allocation of salary and benefit costs from the ECIDA based on staff time charged to the ILDC.

Proposed Approved
Budget Budget Projected Actual
2023 2022 2022 2021

$ 13,000 $ 5800 § 9815 § 1,861
140,000 - 388,352 560,000
300,000 250,000 (144,898) (146,122)

- - 184,450 9,600

200 100 143 206

453,200 255,900 437,862 425,546
190,000 | $ 120,000 186,000 $ 124,534
15,000 - - 74,079
65,000 65,000 48,937 28,953
35,000 30,000 - 6,297

8,175 3,675 19,704 7,887

313,175 218,675 254,641 241,751
2,612,350 3,502,500 1,000,000 715,106
70,000 100,000 19,775 187,255
100,000 100,000 37,462 25,696
283,304 607,342 366,886 325,650
(150,000) - (103,625) (104,500)
(2,682,350) (3,602,500) 20,825 (194,225)
(100,000) (100,000) (8,333) (29,681)
(297,304) (621,342) (49,729) (287,686)
(164,000) (14,000) 1,283,261 637,614

$ (23,975)] $ 23225 $ 1,466,482 $ 821,410
650 975 975 975

$ (24625)] $ 22250 $ 1465507 $ 820,434

12



BUFFALO & ERIE COUNTY INDUSTRIAL LAND DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION ("ILDC")
Proposed Budget and Three Year Forecast 2024-2026

REVENUES:

Interest Income - Loans

Grant Income

Proceeds from Land Sales

Other Income

Interest Income - Cash & Investments
Total Revenues

EXPENSES:

ECIDA Management Fee*
Provision for Loan Losses
Professional Services
Development & Marketing Expenses
Other Expenses

Total Expenses

SPECIAL PROJECTS:

Industrial Land Park - ESD

Industrial Land Park - ECIDA

Angola Ag Park - ECIDA

Other grant revenue

Industrial Land Park grant reimbursement
Industrial Land Park grant costs

Angola Ag Park grant costs

Other grant expenses

NET INCOME/(LOSS) BEFORE DEPRECIATION:

Depreciation

NET INCOME/(LOSS):

Proposed
Budget Forecast Forecast Forecast
2023 2024 2025 2026
$ 13,000 $ 13,000 $ 13650 $ 12,968
140,000 - - -
300,000 300,000 300,000 300,000
200 100 100 100
453,200 313,100 313,750 313,068
190,000 $ 55000 $ 55,000 $ 55,000
156,000 15,000 15,000 15,000
65,000 50,000 50,000 50,000
35,000 15,000 15,000 15,000
8,175 2,500 4,000 5,000
313,175 137,500 139,000 140,000
2,612,350 - - -
70,000 - - -
100,000 - - -
283,304 - - -
(150,000)|  (150,000)  (150,000)  (150,000)
(2,682,350) - - -
(100,000) - - -
(297,304) - - -
(164,000) (150,000)  (150,000)  (150,000)
$ (23975) $ 25600 $ 24,750 $ 23,068
650 650 650 650
$ (24625) $ 24950 $ 24,100 $ 22,418

13

* Represents an allocation of salary and benefit costs from the ECIDA based on staff time charged to the ILDC.



A Member of the ECIDA Financing and Development Group

INDUSTRIAL LAND DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION

Item 3.2.¢

MEMORANDUM

TO: ECIDA, RDC and ILDC Boards of Directors
FROM: Mollie Profic, Treasurer

SUBJECT: Independent Audit Services RFP Recommendation
DATE: September 28, 2022

The ECIDA’s Professional Services Request for Proposals (RFP) Policy requires proposals for
Professional Auditing Services to be solicited at least every 5 years. Proposals were last solicited in
2017. On July 25, 2022, the Agency issued an RFP for Professional Auditing Services requesting one
CPA firm to jointly audit the Agency and its affiliates and Western Region Corporation (“WRC”). The
RFP requested services for three audit years from January 1, 2022 to December 31, 2024, with an option
of contracting for an additional two years (2025-2026). The length of the potential contract period
coincides with Public Authorities Law which requires rotation of the audit partner every five years.

Request for Proposal Process:

The RFP was submitted directly to the top ten accounting firms per the 2022 Business First Book of
Lists and any firms not on that list that had proposed in 2017. Ads were also placed in the Buffalo News,
the Buffalo Criterion, and Challenger Community News stating the Agency issued an RFP for these
services. In addition, the RFP was posted on ECIDA’s website. The REP responses were due on August
26. Four proposals were received from local firms.

Evaluation Process:

Proposals were evaluated by Mollie Profic, CFO, Atiga Abidi, Senior Accountant, and Jerry Manhard,
Chief Lending Officer and points were assigned based on the following criteria as stated in the RFP:

1) Qualifications and experience of the audit firm. (25%)

2) Qualifications and experience of the partners and staff proposed for the engagement. (25%)
3) All-inclusive cost for the potential five-year engagement. (40%)

4) Minority & women ownership, employee development and/or programs (10%)

5) Compliance with local, state or federal statutes and regulations

14



Results:

Lumsden McCormick was the top-rated firm. As a firm they have experience auditing similar clients
such as Niagara County IDA and its affiliates, Greater Lockport Development Corporation, and Niagara
Frontier Transportation Authority. Their government services practice has 30 staff members and 39% of
the firm’s partners are female. On the engagement team, both partners and the audit manager have
previously served ECIDA and its affiliates. Members of the audit department with expertise in the area
prepare and review all information returns (990s). Their tax department is available for assistance on any
technical questions. Lumsden McCormick is involved with the Career Opportunities in the Accounting
Profession (COAP) Program, a learning program which exposes minority high school and college
students to accounting careers, in an effort to grow the presence of historically underrepresented
minorities in the profession. The firm is headquartered in downtown Buffalo and is a member of the
BDO Alliance USA, a nationwide association that can provide additional resources, if necessary. Their
average audit fee over three years for all entities (including single audit costs, if necessary) is $59,700.

ECIDA RDC ILDC WRC Total
2022 $31,000 $16,000 $6,000 $4,000 $57,000
2023 32,400 16,900 6,200 4,200 59,700
2024 33,800 17,800 6,400 4,400 62,400
Average $32,400 $16,495 $6,200 ~$4,200 $59,700

On September 23, 2022 members of the Joint Finance & Audit Committee of ECIDA, RDC, and ILDC
reviewed the above and concurred with the staff recommendation. A quorum of the Committee was not
present for a vote.

Recommendation:

We request that each of the Boards of the ECIDA, RDC, and ILDC approve the selection of Lumsden
McCormick, LLP to provide professional auditing services for the 2022-2024 audits with an option of
contracting with the firm for the 2025-2026 audits.

15



BUFFALO AND ERIE COUNTY
INDUSTRIAL LAND DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION
RESOLUTION

A meeting of the Buffalo and Erie County Industrial Land Development Corporation was
convened on Wednesday, September 28, 2022, at 12:00 p.m.

The following resolution was duly offered and seconded, to wit;

RESOLUTION OF THE BUFFALO AND ERIE COUNTY INDUSTRIAL LAND
DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION (“ILDC”) TO ENTER INTO A CONTRACT
WITH LUMSDEN MCCORMICK, LLP TO PROVIDE PROFESSIONAL
AUDITING SERVICES TO THE ILDC

WHEREAS, the Buffalo and Erie County Industrial Land Development Corporation (the
“ILDC”) is authorized and empowered by Section 1411 of the Not-for-Profit Corporation Law of the
State of New York, as amended, to relieve and reduce unemployment, promote and provide for
additional and maximum employment, better and maintain job opportunities in Erie County and to
lessen the burdens of government and act in the public interest; and

WHEREAS, the ILDC, in unison and tandem with its affiliates the Erie County Industrial
Development (the “Agency™) and the Buffalo and Erie Regional Development Corporation (the
“RDC”), utilized the Agency’s Professional Services Requests for Proposals Process (the “RFP
Process”), which requires proposals for Professional Auditing Services to be solicited at least every
five years; and

WHEREAS, the ILDC, on July 25, 2022, issued a Request for Proposals for Professional
Auditing Services (the “Auditing Services RFP”); and

WHEREAS, the Auditing Services RFP was mailed to the top ten accounting firms per the
2022 Buffalo Business First Book of Lists, ads were placed in the Buffalo News, the Buffalo Criterion
and Challenger Community News stating that the Agency issued the Auditing Services RFP, and the
Auditing Services RFP was posted on Agency’s website, with responses due by August 26, 2022; and

WHEREAS, four (4) proposals were timely received from local firms; and

WHEREAS, an internal ILDC staff committee reviewed and scored the Auditing Services REP
responses in accordance with certain scoring criteria evaluating: (i) the qualifications and experience
of the respondents, (ii) the qualifications and experience of the respondent’s partners and staff proposed
for the engagement, (iii) the all-inclusive cost figure for the potential five-year engagement, (iv)
minority and women ownership, employee development and/or programs related thereto, and (v)
compliance with local, State or Federal statutes and regulations; and

WHEREAS, the internal ILDC staff committee has unanimously recommended that Lumsden
McCormick, LLP (“Lumsden McCormick™) be selected to provide professional auditing services to
the ILDC; and

16



WHEREAS, the ILDC desires to adopt a resolution which will provide the necessary authority
for the ILDC to enter into an engagement with Lumsden McCormick.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BUFFALO AND ERIE COUNTY
INDUSTRIAL LAND DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION, AS FOLLOWS:

Section 1. The ILDC hereby confirms that it is authorized to select a professional auditing
services firm to provide auditing services to the ILDC consistent with the RFP Policy.

Section 2. Effective with the adoption of this resolution, the ILDC hereby finds, in comparison
to the other Auditing Services RFP respondents, that Lumsden McCormick has significant auditing
experience auditing similarly situated IDAs, has a large government services practice group consisting
of over 30 staff members, with 39% of the firm’s partners being female, is involved with the Career
Opportunities in the Accounting Profession (COAP) Program, a learning program which exposes
minority high school and college students to accounting careers in an effort to grow the presence of
historically underrepresented minorities in the profession, has significant government and not-for-
profit audit experience, a tax department which is available for assistance on any technical questions,
and is a member of BDO Alliance USA, a nationwide association, providing Lumsden McCormick
with additional access to resources and knowledge to assist the ILDC.

Section 3. The ILDC hereby selects Lumsden McCormick to provide professional auditing
services for the 2022, 2023 and 2024 fiscal years, and hereby directs the ILDC’s Finance and Audit
Committee to review Lumsden McCormick’s 2022, 2023 and 2024 performance and fees and further
resolves and confirms that based upon the ILDC’s Finance and Audit Committee’s satisfactory review
of same, and upon the approval of the ILDC’s Finance and Audit Committee, that Lumsden
McCormick continue to be retained to provide auditing services for the 2025 and 2026 fiscal years.

Section 4. The officers, employees and agents of the ILDC are hereby authorized and
directed for and in the name and on behalf of the ILDC to do all acts and things required and to
negotiate, execute and deliver all such certificates, instruments and documents, to pay all such fees,
charges and expenses and to do all such further acts and things as may be necessary or, in the opinion
of the officer, employee or agent acting, desirable and proper to effect the purposes of the foregoing
resolutions and to cause compliance by the ILDC with all of the terms, covenants and provisions of
the documents executed for and on behalf of the ILDC.

Section 5. Any and all actions heretofore taken or authorized by the ILDC and/or its
officers, employees and agents with respect to this resolution are hereby ratified, approved and
confirmed in all aspects.

Section 6. This Resolution shall take effect immediately.

ADOPTED: September 28, 2022

17



A Member of the ECIDA Financing and Development Group

INDUSTRIAL LAND DEVELOPMENT CORTION

Loan Status Report
September 2022

ILDC Loans Approved Since Last Meeting Municipality Amount
(None)
ILDC Loans Closed Since Last Meeting Municipality Amount
Stack Burger, LLC Lackawanna $ 35,000
Feelings Rock, Inc. Clarence $ 35,000
Wild Disc, LLC West Seneca $ 35,000
S&R Professional West Seneca $ 35,000

Total: $140,000
Loans in Closing Process Municipality Amount
(None)
Loans in the Pipeline Municipality Amount
Rachacha Designs West Seneca $5,000

2022 - Loans Closed YTD L.oan Total Jobs to be Created Retained Jobs

12 $365,000 10 14

Loan Portfolio Performance

Past Due Loans:

Loan Outstanding Balance Amount Past Due Days Past Due Comments
NONE

Portfolio Delinguency Rate (Past Due Outstandine Loan Balance divided by Portfolio Balance):

$0/$944,849 0% Delinquency Rate (30 Loans)

ILDC Funds Available to Lend: $295,852

95 Perry Street, Suite 403 « Buffalo, New York 14203 « ph. 716.856.6525 « fx. 716.856.6754 » www.ecidany.com

18



A Member of the ECIDA Financing and Development Group

INDUSTRIAL LAND DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION

MEMORANDUM

September 21, 2022

To: Members of the Board of Directors of the Buffalo and Erie County Industrial
Land Development Corporation

Re: Renaissance Commerce Park — Public Sanitary Sewer and Water Line
Extensions

Background:

On Friday July 29" 2022 the ILDC publicly issued a Request for Bids for construction and
installation of public sanitary sewer and water line extensions at Renaissance Commerce Park.
The contractor would be responsible for all construction services associated with the installation
of the new water and sewer lines, monitoring, testing, and soils management as required in the
Soils Management Plan for the Brownfield Cleanup Program parcel.

On September 7" , 2022 The ILDC received three bids for the project. As the project engineer
C&S Engineers reviewed the bids and is recommending award to Pinto Construction Services as
the lowest responsible bidder with a bid amount of $5,438,345.31.

Funding for the project is being provided via a grant from the Federal Economic Development
Administration (EDA) and NYS Buffalo Billion funding (ESD). The new utilities will support
the continuing effort to redevelop the Renaissance Commerce Park and the reuse of the former
brownfield site to create new economic and recreational opportunities for the residents of Erie

County.

Requested Actions:

Seeking approval to enter into a contract with Pinto Construction Services as the lowest responsible bidder
for the construction of public sanitary sewer and water line extension at Renaissance Commerce Park for a
bis amount of $5,438,345.31 and to approve change orders as maybe required for the completion of the
project, subject to the approval of the EDA and ESD as fiinding agencies.

95 Perry Street, Suite 403 « Buffalo, New York 14203 « ph. 716.856.6525  fx. 716.856.6754 « www.ecidany.com

19



C&S Companies
141 Elm Street, Suite 100

| Buffalo NY 14203
c&s 3 p: (716) 847-1630
COMPANIES" § f: (716) 847-1454
; WWW.LSCos.com

September 13, 2022

John Cappellino

President/CEQ

Erie County Industrial Development Agency/ECILDC
95 Perry Street, Suite 403

Buffalo, NY 14203

Re:  Former Bethlehem Steel Public Sanitary Sewer & Waterline Extensions
EDA Project No. 01-79-15063
Bid Award Recommendation

File: 135F.001.001

Dear Mr. Cappellino:

On September 7, 2022, ECIDA/ECILDC received three (3) sealed bids at 95 Perry Street, Suite
403 Buffalo, NY for the above referenced project, which were opened and read aloud by John
Cappellino, President of the ECIDA/ECILDC. The bids ranged from a low bid of $5,438,345.31
submitted by Pinto Construction Services, Inc. to a high bid of $14,883,822.84 submitted by
Zoladz Construction Co. Inc. resulting in a bid range of $6,445,477.53.

Based on the bids received, Pinto Construction services, Inc. is the apparent low bidder with a bid
amount of $5,438,345.31 ($5,077,595.31 Base Bid + $360,750.00 in Allowances). The next
apparent low bidder was Mark Cerrone, Inc., with a total bid amount of $5,795,770.00
(85,412,520.00 Base Bid + $383,250.00 in Allowances). See attached bid tabulation.

The final construction cost estimate prepared by C&S Engineers, Inc. was $5,571,864.22. The low
bid submitted by Pinto Construction Services, Inc. is approximately 2.4% below the engineer’s
estimate. Given that the bid from Zoladz was significantly higher than the two lower bids, the bid
range and bid average results are skewed and are not particularly meaningful. Excluding Zoladz’s
bid, the difference between the two lowest bids in 6.2%.

C&S Engineers has reviewed Pinto Construction Services® Bid proposal and did not find any errors
or irregularities. They have not been debarred from public work #nd are not on the SAM.Gov
Excluded Parties List.

C&S has worked with Pinto Constriction Services on several similar projects in the past, Pinto has
performed well based on our own experience and we recommend awarding the contract to Pinto
Construction Services in the amount of $5,438,345.31.

We look forward to continue working on this project with you. If you have any questions, please
feel free to give us a call.

20



John Cappellino
September 13, 2022
Page 2

Sincerely,

C&S ENGINEERS, INC.

= OCc
Victor O’Brien, P.E.
Department Manager

Enc.

21

(877) CS-SOLVE



BUFFALO AND ERIE COUNTY INDUSTRIAL LAND
DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION

RESOLUTION

A regular meeting of the Buffalo and Erie County Industrial Land Development
Corporation (“ILDC”) was convened on Wednesday, September 28, 2022 at 12:00 p-m.

The following resolution was duly offered and seconded, to wit:

RESOLUTION OF THE BUFFALO AND ERIE COUNTY INDUSTRIAL
LAND DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION (“ILDC”) AUTHORIZING THE
ILDC TO ENTER INTO A CONTRACT WITH PINTO CONSTRUCTION
SERVICES TO PROVIDE CONSTRUCTION SERVICES FOR THE
CONSTRUCTION OF NEW PUBLIC SANITARY SEWER AND WATER
LINE EXTENSIONS AT ODELL STREET AND RIDGE ROAD IN THE
RENAISSANCE COMMERCE PARK

WHEREAS, the ILDC is authorized and empowered by Section 1411 of the Not-for-Profit
Corporation Law of the State of New York, as amended, to relieve and reduce unemployment,
promote and provide for additional and maximum employment, better and maintain job
opportunities in Erie County, and to lessen the burdens of government and act in the public interest;
and .

WHEREAS, the ILDC owns approximately 130 acres of real property located within the
Renaissance Commerce Park (“RCP”) in Lackawanna, New York, and consistent with its mission,
has established and is implementing its Advanced Manufacturing Park — Infrastructure Plan (the
“Plan”) thereon for the benefit of the residents of Erie County; and

WHEREAS, related to the Plan, the ILDC completed an Infrastructure Master Plan and
prepared a Generic Environmental Impact Statement (“GEIS”) and Findings Statement pursuant
to Article 8 of the New York Environmental Conservation Law and the regulations adopted thereto
at 6 N.Y.CR.R. Part 617 (collectively referred to as “SEQRA™); and

WHEREAS, the Plan calls for the installation of utilities, roadways and other infrastructure
improvements to service the RCP occupants; and

WHEREAS, the ILDC desires to install new public sanitary sewer and water line
extensions along Odell Street and Ridge Road in the RCP to support the continuing effort to
redevelop the RCP (the “Project”); and

WHEREAS, the ILDC, on July 29, 2022, issued a Request for Bids (“RFB”) to provide
construction services for the Project; and

WHEREAS, the ILDC received multiple quality proposals in response to the RFB and

ILDC staff established a review committee (the “Review Committee™) to analyze and consider
said RFB responses; and

22



WHEREAS, the Review Committee is recommending that the ILDC retain the services of
Pinto Construction Services (“PCS”) to undertake the Project.

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MEMBERS OF THE BUFFALO
AND ERIE COUNTY INDUSTRIAL LAND DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION AS
FOLLOWS:

Section 1. Based upon a review of the PCS RFB response, the proposed Project, the
representations made by PCS to the ILDC, the Review Committee recommendation and the ILDC
SEQRA Findings, the ILDC hereby determines that no further SEQR compliance is required
pursuant to 6 N.Y.C.R.R. Section 617.10(d)(1) because the contemplated Project will be carried
out in conformance with the conditions and thresholds established in the GEIS.

Section 2. Subject to the terms of this Resolution, the Chair, the Vice Chair, the
President/Chief Executive Officer, the Vice President, the Chief Financial Officer/Treasurer
and/or the Assistant Treasurer, are hereby authorized, on behalf of the ILDC, to negotiate and
execute a contract with PCS for construction services for the Project, in an amount not to exceed
$5,438,345.31, and any appropriate change orders or scope additions as approved by the Chief
Executive Officer, in consultation with the ILDC Board Chair.

Section 3. The officers, employees, and agents of the ILDC are hereby authorized and
directed for and in the name and on behalf of the ILDC to do all acts and things required and to
execute and deliver all such checks, certificates, instruments and documents, to pay all such fees,
charges and expenses and to do all such further acts and things as may be necessary or, in the
opinion of the officer, employee or agent so acting, desirable and proper to effect the purposes of
the foregoing resolution and to cause compliance by the ILDC with all of the terms, covenants and
provisions of the documents executed for and on behalf of the ILDC.

Section 4. Any and all actions heretofore taken or authorized by the ILDC and/or its
officers, employees and agents with respect to this resolution are hereby ratified, approved and
confirmed in all aspects.

Section 5. These Resolutions shall take effect immediately.

Dated: September 28, 2022

23



BUFFALO AND ERIE COUNTY INDUSTRIAL LAND
DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION
RESOLUTION

A regular meeting of the Buffalo and Erie County Industrial Land Development
Corporation (“ILDC”) was convened on Wednesday, September 28, 2022 at 12:30 p.m.

The following resolution was duly offered and seconded, to wit:

RESOLUTION OF THE BUFFALO AND ERIE COUNTY INDUSTRIAL LAND
DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION (“ILDC™) AUTHORIZING THE ILDC TO
ENTER INTO A LICENSE AGREEMENT WITH SUCRO REAL PROPERTY
NY, LLC (“COMPANY”) TO CONSTRUCT A RAILWAY SIDE AND
RAILWAY SPUR AS HEREIN DESCRIBED AT THE RENAISSANCE
COMMERCE PARK, LACKAWANNA, NEW YORK (“RCP”)

WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 1411 of the Not-for-Profit Corporation Law of the State
of New York, the Buffalo and Erie County Industrial Land Development Corporation (“ILDC*)
was created as a Not-for-Profit Local Development Corporation; and

WHEREAS, the ILDC is authorized and empowered by Section 1411 of the Not-for-Profit
Corporation Law of the State of New York, as amended, to relieve and reduce unemployment,
promote and providé for additional and maximum employment, better and maintain job
opportunities in Erie County, and to lessen the burdens of government and act in the public interest;
and

WHEREAS, the Erie County Industrial Development Agency (“Agency”), Erie County
(*County™), Tecumseh Redevelopment Inc. (“Tecumseh”) and South Buffale Railway (“SBR”)
previously partnered to create a rail corridor of approximately two miles in. length (the “Railway”)
to replace rail infrastructure located on the eastern edge of the Renaissance Commerce Park

(“RCP”), adjacent to New York State Route 5, and relocated same for the purpose of facilitating
the development of the RCP while maintaining rail service to existing customers in the RCP; and

WHEREAS, the Company acquired approximately 12,07 acres of real property located at
2303 Hamburg Turnpike, Lackawanna, New York located within the RCP from Tecumseh on or
about February 23, 2021 (“Company Premises’ ”); and

'WHEREAS, the Company submitted an application (the “Apphcatwn”) to the Agency
requesting the Agency’s assistance with a certain pro_lect (the “Project™) consisting of: (i) the
acquisition by the Agency of a leaschold interest in the Company Premises and existing
improvements located thereon, consisting of two buildings totaling approximately 174,600 square
feet (the “Existing Improvements”), (ii) the renovation of the Existing Improvements and the
construction of a new approximately 33,600 square foot building (the “Improvements™) all for the
purposes of accommodatinig new bulk and finished product storage, logistical operations, as well
as sugar refining operations of the Company, and (jii) the acquisition by the Conipany in and
around the Land, the Existing Improvements, and the Improvements of certain items of machinery,

24



equipment and other tangible personal property (fhe *Equipment"; and, together with the Company
Premises, the Existing Improvements and the Improvements, the "Facility); and

WHEREAS, the Agency approved the Project by Resolution dated January 27, 2021; and

WHEREAS, the ILDC owns approximately 130 acres of real property located within the
RCP (the “ILDC Premises™), including certain real property located within a right of way (the
“ROW”) upon which the relocated Railway was constructed, as more particularly described in
Exhibit A attached hereto and made part hereof (the “ILDC Railway Premises”); and

WHEREAS, in direct relation to the Project and related to operations of the Facility, the
Company desires to construct and operate a certain railway side and railway spur within the ROW
and on a portion of the ILDC Rallway Premises (collectively, the “Railway Side and Railway
Spur”), for the purpose of connecting the Facility to the Railway; and

Company solely for the purpose of allowmg the Company to access the ILDC Raﬂway Premlses
to construct and operate the Railway Side and Railway Spur; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to and in accordance with applicable provisions of the State
Environmental Quality Review Act (“SEQR™), the Company has submitted to the ILDC a Short
Environmental Assessment Form (the “EAF”) with respect to the ILDC’s licensing and the
Company’s construction and operation of the Railway Side and Railway Spur (the “Rallway Side
and Spur Project™).

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MEMBERS OF THE BUFFALQ
AND ERIE COUNTY INDUSTRIAL LAND DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION AS
FOLLOWS:

Section 1. Based upon a review of the Railway Side and Spur Project and representations
made by the Company to the ILDC and the EAF, the ILDC finds and determines that: (i) the
Railway Side and Spur Project constitutes an "Unlisted Action" within the meaning of SEQR and
a coordinated review is optional; (i) the TLDC has conducted an unceordinated review of the
Railway Side and Spur Project under SEQR; (iii) the Project will result in no major impacts and,
therefore, is one which may not cause significant damage to the environment; (iv) the Project will
not have a "significant effect on the environment" as such quoted term is defined in SEQR; and
(v) no "environmental impact statement” as such quoted term is defined in SEQR, need be prepared
for this action. The ILDC thus issues a Negative Declaration pursuantto 6 N.Y.C.R.R. § 617.7 of
the SEQR regulations, which concludes the ILDC's uncoordinated review of the Railway Side and
Spur Project.

Section 2. Subject to the terms of this resolution, the Chair, the Vice Chair, the
President/Chief Executive Officer, the Vice President, the Chief Financial Ofﬁcer/Treasurer
and/or the Assistant Treasurer, are hereby authorized, on behalf of the TLDC, to negotiate and
execute a license agreement with the Company to permit the Conipany to access the ILDC
Premises at the RCP for the construction of the Railway Side and Railway Spur, including any

25



appropnate modifications or amendments thereto as approved by the President/Chief Executive
Officer, in consultation with the ILDC general counsel.

Section 3. The officers, employees, and agents of the TLDC are hereby authorized and
directed for and in the name and on behalf of the ILDC to do all acts and things required and to
execute and deliver all such checks, certificates, instruments and documents, to pay all such fees,
charges and expenses and to do all such further acts and things as may be negessary or, in the
opinion of the officer, employee or agent so acting, desirable and proper to effect the purpeses of
the foregoing resolution and to cause compliance by the ILDC with all of the terms, covenants and
provisions of the documents executed for and on behalf of the ILDC.

Section 4. Any and all prior actions taken by the ILDC with respect to the contents of this
resolution are hereby ratified and confirmed.

Section 5. This resolution shall take effect immediately.

Dated: September 28, 2022

26



EXHIBIT A
ILDC RAILWAY PREMISES

27



(_zezoz/zz/8 uva) (TNY 1) (C OVM wa)(
_ 091=,T FIVOS
XIOX AN JO AIVLS
FEF JO XINNOD ‘VNNVAVIOVI 40 ALID
NOILVANESHY ¥aau) OTvdind
THIL JO @ FONVH ‘0T JTHSNAMOJL
aNY IOVAL TH0D NIAO0 HHL J0

vaQ  m3uo)

62 OGNV €2'22'12°02 SLOT 40 SI¥Vd NI SLVALS

|0 2smisayysy adoaspuby) pus Bupeaing ‘SubisauiBul “ainjasyuasy GA PPUM .“q \

Woo'saiundwlodiepUSM AMA J1ISEIN
: SZROGZIBLL NV SILOBADGLL ANOHA
_ aﬁ WioA moN ‘SlASwDYINL
.gmog.ﬁvuaxﬂunnnﬁengoossoes..ou

011 ‘AN 31vIS3 ._<u~_x
¥04 NVId XOowdl3als 1
JO dvN -

4
I

SUOENINT
ety . . CH uanme Soss
0801-d 0281T1-1
"NOLLVH0JH0D 1'25-T-TT°T¥Y 16§
Ez:._o..ﬁua NV AN | cucmnwuwwmwﬁu._
00 F143 QNV 0TV4dnd 06014 0ZET- _

("ov 92°2T¥F)
NL618T60 'ON ALIS 4Jd

S e w—

———1 Sy a2 ll..l.ll_ﬂ«...l.

Ll L7 PR

ININJOTIATA ANV TVIMISNANT
XINNOD FINY ANV 07v4ind
(*av 86'6F)
[287C183 'ON ILIS 424

Aaa] \\”r
\_

I \%zﬁ\u&mﬁv

T Wl WA QRTNIRNE

LTI S HOSNFNT

U 0 L5vel)
10°01%F)

(ov

IL61976D 'ON ILIS D

OBy INFNISYI)
Z612-d 9i5L1—7 A8 OIN0ON
AZ0E=d 08805 —7 ANWGHOOD

______
PR TR WA

Zi@y=i-11°l#l S
OfE~d GLEE=T

ﬁ ¥ SL814=1
v 1£ZIF)
9iZ6169 ON IS <08

W 0T —

¥90T—d 98807~1
"ONI ‘§3INTO TAVEL AVAILVD

BT
e r Ik ﬁ“n_«m

28




Short Environmental Assessment Form
Part 1 - Project Information

Instructions for Completing

[Part 1 — Project Information] The applicant or project sponsor is responsible for the completion of Part 1. Responses become part of the
application for approval or funding, are subject to public review, and may be subject to further verification. Complete Part 1 based on
information currently available. If additional research or investigation would be needed to fully respond to any item, please answer as
thoroughly as possible based on current information.

Complete all items in Part 1. You may also provide any additional information which you believe will be needed by or useful to the
lead agency; attach additional pages as necessary to supplement any item.

[Part 1 — Project and Sponsor Information

Name of Action or Project:
Sucro Rail Spur and Rail Siding

Project Location (describe, and attach a location map):

See attached. Portion of lands of Sucro Real Estate NY, LLC and Buffalo and Erie County Industrial Land Development Corporation

Brief Description of Proposed Action:

A new private railroad spur and railroad siding will be constructed off the existing East Harbor Lead Rail east of the Sucro Offices and Finished Product
Storage building. The new spur, which will be approximately 1200 feet in total length, will be constructed of stone ballast, wooden ties and track, with
switchgear to facilitate movement of cars off and back onto the East Harbor Lead track. See attached. The railroad spur will be constructed on a portion
of the lands owned by Sucro Real Estate NY, LLC and a portion of the lands owned by the Buffalo and Erie County Industrial Land Development
Corporation that will be permitted by a proposed Construction and Access License Agreement.

Name of Applicant or Sponsor: Telephone: (305) 901-5222

Sucro Real Estate NY, LLC

Address:
2020 Ponce de Leon Bivd, Suite 1204

E-Mail: jtaylor@sucro.us

City/PO: State: Zip Code:
Coral Gables FL 33134
1. Does the proposed action only involve the legislative adoption of a plan. Iocal law. ordinance] NO | YES
dminystrative rule, or regulafion?
If Yes, attach a narrative description of the intent of the proposed action and the environmental resources that |:|
may be affected in the municipality and proceed to Part 2. If no, continue to question 2.
2. [Does the proposed action require a permit, approval or funding from any other government Agency?| NO YES
If Yes, list agency(s) name and permit or approval:City of Lackawanna Planning and Development Board,
Buffalo and Erie County Industrial Land Development Corporation I:I

3. a.[Lotal acreage of the site of the proposed actionl 12.07acres

b.[Total acreage to be physically disturbed? 0.7acres
c. [Total acrea roject sit any contiguous properties) o
or controlled by the applicant or project sponsor 12.07 3cres
4, Eheck all land uses that occur on, are adjoining or near the proposed action:
[JUrban [] Rural (non-agriculture) Industrial [_] Commercial [} Residential (suburban)

[ Forest [ Agriculture [] Aquatic [1 Other(Specify):
[JParkland

Page 1 of 3 SEAF 2019
29



5. Is the proposed action,

:

N/A

a. [A permitted use under the zoning regulafions?

b. [Consistent with the adopfed comprehensive plan?

[]
L]

R

b.  Are public transportation services available at or near the site of the proposed action?

c.  Are any pedestrian accommodations or bicycle routes available on or near the site of the proposed
action?

NO | YES
6. |[Is the proposed action consistent with the predominant character of the existing built or natural landscape?|

[
7. |Is the site of the proposed action located in. or does it adjoin. a state listed Critical Environmental Area?| NO | YES
If Yes, identify:

’ U

NO | YES

8. a

LS

9. [Does the proposed action meet or exceed the state energy code requirements}

If the proposed action will exceed requirements, describe design features and technologies:

Z
o

which is listed on the National or State Register of Historic Places, or that has been determined by the
Commissioner of the NYS Office of Parks, Recreation and Historic Preservation to be eligible for listing on the

State Register of Historic Places?

b. Is the project site, or any portion of it, located in or adjacent to an area designated as sensitive for
archaeological sites on the NY State Historic Preservation Office (SHPO) archaeological site inventory?

10. IWilI the proposed action connect to an existing public/private water supply? NO | YES
If No, describe method for providing potable water:
The proposed Action does not require a water supply. D
11. [Will the proposed action connect to existing wastewater utilities] NO | YES
If No, describe method for providing wastewater treatment:
The proposed Action will not generate wastewater I:I
12. a. Does the project site contain, or is it substantially contiguous to, a building, archaeological site, or distric| NO | YES

13. a. [Does any portion of the site of the proposed action, or lands adjoining the proposed action. contain

erb fe - local

b. Would the proposed action physically alter, or encroach into, any existing wetland or waterbody?

If Yes, identify the wetland or waterbody and extent of alterations in square feet or acres:

Page 2 of 3
30




14. [dentify the typical habitat types that occur on. or are likely to be found on the project site| Check all that apply:
[“1Shoreline Forest [_] Agricultural/grasslands [] Early mid-successional

[JWetland [] Urban [] Suburban

15.

[Does the site of the proposed action contain any species of animal. or associated habitats. listed by the State o

|Federal government as threatened or endangered?

a. Will storm water discharges flow to adjacent properties?

b.  Will storm water discharges be directed to established conveyance systems (runoff and storm drains)?
If Yes, briefly describe:

NINNEISIEINIE

If Yes, describe:

Site was remediated voluntarily under NY State Brownfield Cleanup Program, Site No. C915198 (non-hazardous waste cleanup). A
Certificate of Completion was issued by the NYSDEC certitying cleanup was parformed i accordance with applicable regulations.

18. |Does the proposed action include construction or other activities that would result in the impoundment of waterl NO | YES
Lor other liguids (e.g., retention pond, waste lagoon, dami){

If Yes, explain the purpose and size of the impoundment:

[]
19. |Has the site of the proposed action or an adjoining property been the location of an active or closed solid wast NO | YES

[management facility]

If Yes, describe:

vl ]
20.Has the site of the proposed action or an adjoining property been the subject of remediation (ongoing o NO | YES

I CERTIFY THAT THE INFORMATION PROVIDED ABOVE IS TRUE AND ACCURATE TO THE BEST OF

MY KNOWLEDGE
Applicant/sponsor/pfifie: Jonathon Taylor Date: 9/14/2022
Sien / Title:President of Sucro Real Estate NY, LLC

A

A

PRINT FORM Page 3 of 3
31




Agency Use Only [If applicable]

Project:

Date:

Short Environmental Assessment Form
Part 2 - Impact Assessment

Part 2 is to be completed by the Lead Agency.

Answer all of the following questions in Part 2 using the information contained in Part 1 and other materials submitted by
the project sponsor or otherwise available to the reviewer. When answering the questions the reviewer should be guided by
the concept “Have my responses been reasonable considering the scale and context of the proposed action?”

No, or Moderate

small to large
impact impact
may may
occur occur

1. Will the proposed action create a material conflict with an adopted land use plan or zoning
regulations?

OO O O o o o s

2. 'Will the proposed action result in a change in the use or intensity of use of land?

3. Will the proposed action impair the character or quality of the existing community?

4. 'Will the proposed action have an impact on the environmental characteristics that caused the
establishment of a Critical Environmental Area (CEA)?

|

5. Will the proposed action result in an adverse change in the existing level of traffic or
affect existing infrastructure for mass transit, biking or walkway?

6. Will the proposed action cause an increase in the use of energy and it fails to incorporate
reasonably available energy conservation or renewable energy opportunities?

7. Will the proposed action impact existing:
a. public / private water supplies?

b. public / private wastewater treatment utilities?

.

Will the proposed action impair the character or quality of important historic, archaeological,
architectural or aesthetic resources?

9. Will the proposed action result in an adverse change to natural resources (e.g., wetlands,
waterbodies, groundwater, air quality, flora and fauna)?

10. Will the proposed action result in an increase in the potential for erosion, flooding or drainage
problems?

980 EEEN R 8RR

11. Will the proposed action create a hazard to environmental resources or human health?

PRINT FORM Page 1 of 2

SEAF 2019
32



Agency Use Only |1t applicable]

Project:

Date:

Short Environmental Assessment Form
Part 3 Determination of Significance

For every question in Part 2 that was answered “moderate to large impact may occur”, or if there is a need to explain whya
particular element of the proposed action may or will not result in a significant adverse environmental impact, please
complete Part 3. Part 3 should, in sufficient detail, identify the impact, including any measures or design elements that
have been included by the project sponsor to avoid or reduce impacts. Part 3 should also explain how the lead agency
determined that the impact may or will not be significant. Each potential impact should be assessed considering its setting,
probability of occurring, duration, irreversibility, geographic scope and magnitude. Also consider the potential for short-
term, long-term and cumulative impacts.

D Check this box if you have determined, based on the information and analysis above, and any supporting documentation,
that the proposed action may result in one or more potentially large or significant adverse impacts and an
environmental impact statement is required.

I:l Check this box if you have determined, based on the information and analysis above, and any supporting documentation
that the proposed action will not result in any significant adverse environmental impacts.

£

Name of Lead Agency Date
Print or Type Name of Responsible Officer in Lead Agency Title of Responsible Officer
Signature of Responsible Officer in Lead Agency Signature of Preparer (if different from Responsible Officer)
PRINT FORM Page 2 of 2

33



FACAD\Benchmark\Sucro Real Estate NY, LL.C\2022 Rail Siding EAF\Figure 1; Site Location and Vicinity Map.dwg, 9/14/2022 11:08:16 AM, DWG To PDF.pc3

RS (S e A
BASEMAP PER USGS QUADRANGLE BUFFALO SOUTHEAST 2019

4,000' o' 4,000'

SCALE: 1 INCH =4,000 FEET
SCALE IN FEET
(approximate)

FIGURE 1

'

FTONGR.

e |

140
i . COVING
it ¥

FLMSEORD D2 i

8,000’

QUADRANGLE LOCATION

BEeNcHMARK

C

2558 HAMBURG TURNRIKE, SUITE 300, BUFFALO, NY 14218, (716) 856-0599

PROJECT NO.: 0555-020-003

DATE: SEPTEMBER 2022

DRAFTED BY: RFL

SITE LOCATION & VICINITY MAP
RAIL SPUR ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT FORM (EAF)

PHASE IA BUSINESS PARK
BCP SITE NO. C915218
LACKAWANNA, NEW YORK

PREPARED FOR

SUCRO REAL ESTATE NY, LLC

DISCLAIMER:

PROPERTY OF BENCHMARK CIVIL/ENVIRONMENTAL ENGINEERING & GEOLOGY, PLLC. IMPORTANT: THIS DRAWING PRINT IS LOANED FOR MUTUAL ASSISTANCE AND AS SUCH IS SUBJECT TO RECALL AT ANY
TIME. INFORMATION CONTAINED HEREON IS NOT TO BE DISCLOSED OR REPRODUCED IN ANY FORM FOR THE BENEFIT OF PARTIES OTHER THAN NECESSARY SUBCONTRACTORS & SUPPLIERS WITHOUT
THE WRITTEN CONSENT OF BENCHMARK CIVIL/ENVIRONMENTAL ENGINEERING & GEOLOGY, PLLC.

34



pa

e e

V.4

T T e T T s T = T e Y T —— DY —— T1eS

= I — Jnsy

a
93 e sy )
——

~
® gy |
)

R N7 T T R — i;iiiiii O —— ||i||\L_n.|
o
{1 "ON 3SNOH YIMOd HIWXO0L) “
ONIAIFOTH/ONIALIHS LNIHHND I
.
dNnds
AvOod1IVd A3aNNV1d HO4 L3SNI
— -1
i—
R = (erewixoidde)

B ]

et i adl

1334 NI 37v0S
1334 00€ = HONI | :37vOS

009 .00€ 0

00€

{834V 1E2LH)
2125160 'ON LIS

V1 31IS 409
31IS OMONsS

T ESIT —— ESIAT —— ESMT ——— ESWT ——— ESMT —— ESMT —— E54T ——.

3

E

EST —— ESMT ——— ESMT —— ESMT —— ESMT-—— ESIT — ESMT —— ESMT —— ESWMI —— ESMT —— ESHT — mm_/ glar — EsMT —— Esm

RS P | B e S U i S e — - - — - ——
T e NS3 o INS3 e 1953 |} ST e ANST —— IWST — ST — - IVSD o INS3 —— INS3 o IMS3 o LYSH o IMS3 —— INSY e IWET — INGA e ANS3 —— I3 —— Uf" -

o e A e e 1 I
1. I s LA T— _

| e DO =

] |
/ {1 "ON ISNOH MO HIN05) /
ONIAIFOIW/ONIddIHS {¢ on 3snon uziio ONIdTINg 3DVHOLS ” .
._-ZWIN_ DO REIWHOL ANY L "ON NOLLVLS WVALS ¥IWN0d) m<@3 w >><N_ >>w Z € "ON SNOH ANIONT ONIMOTE H3WRO.
S301440 % AY3ANI4TH ISNOHIHYM

33s HVONS INIFHHND AINIAHND

£9d'40d 0L DMA WY 61:65:LL 220Z/11/6 ‘Bmpueld oS ‘Z einBiy\dy3 Buipis [12Y Z202\0TT AN 3391553 5t:l ocRngLBWYOUSE\aY I\ 4



SEQR SHORT ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT FORM PART 1
SUuCRO REAL ESTATE NY, LLC
ATTACHMENT 1- SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION

Project Location:

The Project will be located on a portion of the lands owned by Sucto Real Estate
NY, LLC located at 2303 Hamburg Turnpike in the City of Lackawanna, County of Etie and
State of New York, which lands are further identified as having and is further known as
being Brownfield Clean-Up Program Site No. C915218.

A portion of the Project will be located on certain adjoining lands owned by the
Buffalo and Erie County Industrial Land Development Corporation in the City of
Lackawanna, County of Erie and State of New York, which lands are further identified as
being Brownfield Clean-Up Program Site Nos. C915197] and C915197K. Sucro Real Estate
NY, LLC will be entitled to use a portion of these lands pursuant to a proposed
Construction and Access Agteement.

See attached site plans from Wendel Engineering

Supplemental Infotrmation:

The following provides additional information for questions in Part 1 of the Short EAF that
resulted in affirmative responses:

Question 12.b. Is the project site, or any portion of it, located in or adjacent to an area
designated as sensitive for archaeological sites on the NY State Historic Presetvation
Office (SHPO) archaeological site inventory?

Firstly, the proposed action does not occur wholly or partially within, or substantially
contiguous to, any buildings, archaeological sites, or districts that are listed on or been
nominated by the NYS Board of Histotic Preservation for inclusion on the State or National
Register of Histotic Places.

Secondly, although the EAF Mapper identifies the Project Site as being in or adjacent to an
area designated as sensitive for archaeological sites, there are no known sites that have been
identified as significant according to the 1989 City of Lackawanna Local Waterfront
Revitalization Program (LWRP). Specifically, the following excerpts from the LWRP addtess
archeological resources proximate to the Project Area:

= SECTION II Inventory and Analysis, B.10. Historic and Archaeological Resources
(Page 1I-18):

“There are no structures listed, or eligible for listing, on the National Register of Historic Places within

the Lackawanna WRA. A zone of archaeological sensitivity has, however, been identified by the New

36



SEQR SHORT ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT FORM PART 1
SUCRO REAL ESTATE NY, LLC
ATTACHMENT 1 - SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION

York State Office of Parks, Recreation and Historic Preservation in the vicinity of Route 5 and
Smoke's Creek. In addition, a survey of archaeological sites nndertaken by the State University of
New York at Buffalo in March 1984 suggests that two sites may be located either within the LW.A,
or within a one-Rilometer proximity to the area in the vicinity of Smoke's Creek.

The former Bethlehem Steel employment office near the Buffalo-Lackawanna city line is an early
twentieth century structure which is both architecturally and historically significant. The structure's
historic significance comes from its association with the Bethlebem Steel Corporation, while the
architectural importance stems from its classical, revival style of grey brick on a rusticated ashlar

basement. 11 is topped with a hipped roof. The building, however, is not presently listed on the National
or state Registers of Historic places.”

* SECTION III Waterfront Revitalization Program Policies, G. Historic and Scenic
Resources Policies (Page ITI-23):

“Policy 23 Protect, enbance and restore structures, districts, areas or sites that are of significance in the
history, architecture, archacology or culture of the state, its communities, or the nation”

“Policy 23.A Protect, enbance, and restore the archacologically significant site in the vicinity of Smoke’s
Creek in the City of Lackawanna”

Explanation of Policy

“An area of archaeological significance may excist in the vicinity of Smoke’s Creek, as described in
Chapter B-9 of the Inventory and Analysis Section. Prior to undertaking major construction
activities in this area, anyone proposing such activity shall consult with the NYS Office of Parks,
Recreation and Historic Preservation to determine whether significant archaeological resources are
present at the site and what measures are necessary to preserve these resources. Al practicable means
shall be used to preserve significant archaeological resources.

This policy shall not be construed to prevent the construction, reconstruction, alteration, or demolition

of any buslding, structure, carthwork, or component therefor which has been officially certified as
being imminently dangerous to public health and safety.

There are no other resonrces located in the local waterfront area to which the policy applies.”

Based on these determinations and the long history of industrial activity on the Site; the
creation of man-made lands that the Project Site will occupy (through steel slag deposition);
significant prior disturbances to the Project Site through historic demolition and
envitonmental investigations; and the location of the property over 350 feet north of Smokes
Creek, no further discussions with SHPO are warranted.

37



SEQR SHORT ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT FORM PART 1
SUCRO REAL ESTATE NY, LL.C
ATTACHMENT 1- SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION

Question 15. Does the site of the proposed action contain any species of animal, or
associated habitats, listed by the State or Federal government as threatened or
endangered?

NYSDEC is proposing to change the status of the peregrine falcon from Endangered to
Special Concetn; the project was stalled due to COVID. Species of special concern warrant
attention and consideration, but current information does not justify listing as endangered. If
a nest is found, it will be left in place and NYSDEC will be notified. However, the peregtine
falcon typically nests on cliff edges, bluffs, and other elevated areas, patticularly along water
bodies. The subject spur will be located on lands that have been previously cleared of trees
and offer no habitat opportunity for predatory bird nesting.

38



MIHD

Vaa  may
ALID

[

WL

10

I JLVALIS

PUUOLY QM [BPUBH

B\
3

ONIDINOS NVO0dINS d04
NV1d MOvdLl3dIS VIHLSNANI
40 dvWN

o
W4

ﬂn//

d
TT-1

10D

* TVIMLSAANI
v oTvddng
'F)

qALIS dod

[cS]

Z J0 ¢ FoVd
ZE(EEER
(sanr

TYNOOVIG AFHILYH)
YV GISNIONT

(UELOY S, HOSNIIT
FHL H0 1)

1°'26—-1-1T1'1¥1 1dS
¢ T1409vd
0807T—d 02€TT-1
NOILVY0dd0D I
INAWJOTIATA ANVI TVILLSAANI
AINNOD FI4F ANV OTVJIING
(‘ovV 86°6F)

INITIS AvM I £L61S16D "ON HAILIS dD4

MIN G3S0d0Hd
HIUMS F781n04 546

HINON MOVl avoMTivY 195—d 290017
HINOS XNOVlL AMLSNANI MMVHON VYVOVIN OL
INIOd NOUVINITIG dIHSYINMO MOY JO SLUNWIT FLYWIXONDDLY
%)

(3 ININTSYT)
Z2612-d 94£1L—T1 A8 ATNTON

- .
"MV NOILYINQ3 31viS °
MYMOA M3N 3JHL JO Z NOISIAOM

‘60ZL NOILO3S 40 NOLVIOIA
VY Sl dvW AJANNS SIHL OL NolLiaav
HO NOWVHILTY d3IZIMOHLNYNN—

'S3Id0D INL

QNvA 38 OL G343AISNQD 39 TIVHS
IVAS d3ISSOEW3 SHOAIANNS ANV
3HL 4O TYNIOIMO NV ANV 3YNIVYNOIS
JHL HUM ODRIVIN dVIN AJANNS SIHL
40 TYNIORO 3HL WOM4 S3IH0D AINO—

N e/
¢ 40 | 39vd

(JL3d0Yd S, HOSNIINT
HL D L)

(*OV 10°0T¥F)
12612160 "ON LIS ddd

SISINGNd avONTIvY TFHL
NO GIIVI07 SV

OYOYTVY FHI JO JoVd
ONIFE SHOVYL INUSIXI

ININISYE aYOHIvY JFaM ,0°59

o 1206—d 06601 =T ANVAIWOI
ﬁ. AVHIVY ONLING HINOS OL

..... SO e | : >0
.Il.._llT#.H_._ll ll.”ﬁkv | | t | _w ;= L[.Wl* ....... “$ ..... -
| ) | PR _EH_..V— +I|4_—|_1_.I_|f|.l b i L R A A =
- . : Jlnml - — e—
NS aVOHTVY T -HLLurﬂmﬂ_T-T —+ -_-
¥ M 82°6Z LLeL M ZH8Z b= e AL
MIN GFS00Hd ZUgh—I~14"17L 785 . 4
oce-d SL1i-1  HW u 02 a8 JSNOHISVM oc6 ® aucii—7 Y02 VT —y #L84~d ‘08C11=T S X3
I AN UWIST VD ¥ 8 3 ,929¢ a8 Hol¥g (sav 1€ &t R IH0D HIMO
WIS QHINS 00 9078 2o 9125160 ON US o8
T Tdggz9z o e R =, oo o oy AMIYININISYI .
s a3 _ e ¢
i 1 T — X mD
LIVHS YOIWATII HUM SISINGEd OdONS l\ 64 8 [
Qv INOD INIGNNOHHNS u I MIUNTD Qv 2 n
] avoy ug AYMILYD INT 3 g8 yomg OHIE o ¢
INIT ALHTdOY s ¢ =73 L
w00 9q18—_ 8
9078 MIN > 7p4c
e  |= ==
7907T—-d 988011 e H
*ONI ‘SHINHE) IAAVIL AVMALVD
3 o
R &
/ INV00M = "IN ANOLS = “AISTIO HIMOd = dd  FIOHNYA = HNINIAHOVONON = 0Nz  INHEINZO = 3
daoom = ° 133s =715 _ HOMOd = 1 = %08 AL 182 = A'LD INIAY = IV
[ HLM = /M oS = 5 INDND = 178 3did NOHI = dl xo.@ozﬁwwﬂm_,u rd HINH0D = HOD AAVAIXQHdAY _No no
1S3m ="n QVOd = 'GY QVAHMIAD = H/0 3DVMvV9 = v A1THINGD = "ONOD ~ = "XOHddV
o oone — xoa o A ARGaots = aaunbvan = SN SN = 3 mmu_,m_(uﬂ,__‘n__n = .%..m nsva S5 = B S e
. AHVONNOB OuONS NOHHTL L B a=4 TN = RN S TN d330 = "0 SNONALE = -0

39




vaq aw)

ALID
L
ML
10
I TLVALIS
BRYDIY M [BPUSM

>
&

o

ONIOHNOS NVO0YONS d04
NV1d MOVd13dIS TIVIYLSNANI
V3V Jd3ISN3OM 40 JdvA

30Vid MO INIOd 3HL OL 334 L1°8G1 40 3ONVISIA VY ‘3NIT LSVI QIvVS SNOTVY ‘M ,80—,1Z~81 N JONIHL
‘0T AN 3UVISI TvAM O¥ONS 3NM LSV3 3HL NO INIOd ¥ OL 1334 Z'#L 40 3ONVISIA V

SYOMIAN 3INIL W3 100 SAN
HYOA M3N 3HL 40 T NOISIAOYd
‘6024 NOILJIS 40 NOUVIOIA
v SI dYW A3AMNS SIHL OL NoLLaay
¥O NOLUVAILTY Q3IZIRIOHLNYNN-—

3HL ONISN 3NOZ 1S3M 3NVid
3ivlS £80vN OL Q3IONINIJIM
34V SONRVIE TV 310N

‘S3id0D INdL

QITVA 38 OL J3¥3AISNOD 38 TIVHS
Tv3S (Q3SSOGNI S.HOAIANNS ONV
JHL JO “IVNIDIMO NV ANV JHNIVNOIIS
JHL HLM a3MHYN dvN A3ANNS SIHL
40 TVNIDIO 3HL WOdd4 S3Id0J AINO-—

SS31 ¥0 JYOW HO ‘SIUOVY Z0'0 OSNINIVINOD ‘ONINNI93E dJO

‘M G- Ll~¥L S _

INIOd Vv OL 1334 $0°ZSE 40 JONVLISIA V 3 ,96-20~-91 S |

{INIOd v OL 1334 8£°Z¢ 40 3ONvISId ¥V ‘3 ,66—.82—.1L N -

N\ SIION

"MY1 NOILVONG3 3LVIS

odepiao & ‘INIOd V OL 1334 92'864 40 JONVISIG V ‘M ,6€-,20-9} N N 40 ¢ 39vd
J’ *SISYNOD () UNO4 ONIMOTIOS JHL SONVT NLBLGI6D ANV ML6LS16D 40 14Vd ANV NOLLYHOJHO0D
ININJOTIAIA ANV TVINISNANI ALNNOO Y3 ANV OTVA4Ng 3HL 40 SANVT JHL HONOYHL 3ONIHL
:UNIOd OL 1334 99°LL 40
JONVLSIO ¥ OT1 AN 31vIS3 Tv3Y 0¥ONS 40 SANV1 40 3NM HIMON IHL INOW ‘M ,25—.8C—.LZ S JONIHL
00¢ 39vd LV SQ3AA 40 SZEHL ¥3EM NI 301440 SMUTTO AMINAOO 3MI 3HL NI AIAH003Y
@330 A9 ‘OT1 ‘AN 3LVLSI VM O¥ONS OL GIAIANOD SANVT 40 NINMOO ISVAHINON 3JHL IV ONINNIOIE
SMOTIOA SV 03EIOSIA NIHL¥NA ONV "0£0L 39Vd 1V SAIIA 40 0ZCLE ¥IAM NI 01440 SHYTTD ALNNOD
3143 3HL NI 030H003Y 4330 AD NOLVHOCNOD INIWJOTIAIA ANV VIMLSNONI AINNOD M3 ANV OTV44ng
OL G3IAIANOD SANVT JHL 40 € TIONVd ANV Z 1304Vd ONIIE ‘NZ6IGLEO ONV PZ6LGLED HIAWNN 3LS
d98 40 lMvd SY Q3LVNOIS3A ONI3E ONV LOVHL 309 N3A90 3JHL 4O 62 107 J0 Sidvd ONIZE ‘MHOA MAN
40 3IVIS ONV ‘N3 4O ALNMOD ‘WNNVMYIOVT 40 ALD JHL NI JLVALS OGNV 40 T130MVd HO LOWML IVHL TV
€ TIDIVd
e 0€0T—d 02eTT-1T 1°26~T-1T1°I¥#T ~I4dS
NOILVI0dd0D 2 T929vd
LNIWdOTIAHA ANVT TVIYLSNANI 080T~-d 02ETT-1
AINNOD dIdHd ANV OTVIING NOLLVH0d40) ININJOTIAZA ANV
Ao«u 98°21¥) ad TVILLSNANI AINNOD ATYH ANV OTvddnd
JGL6TISTED "ON TLIS dod (‘ov 86'6¥F)
n0< zZ0" Ou_uv FLBTISI6D "ON HILIS d2d
vIuY Bmzuo_._ FOLSE
== 37 ,96-,20-9/ § _
7 rd rd K144}
g2°z¢ \ \\o._._ ‘A1v1S3 Vay \omo:m .\xoo an M 86— Li-¥L S
iy al / £ e
G~ 88—4L N L T
/ M 80—, 1280 N
92861 99°tL!
M 6£-,20-.91 S M 26— G-l S
gp—t—11pt TES
a 0e—d §££14=1
271 N LIS
— I OMINS
09=,1
ViAEd}
T
P INVUICOOM = A AMOLS = “MSTIOL MO = dd  TIOHNYA = HHININHOVONONS = "ON3 _SNMEHINID = ™~
/ = = n = Jon G0 = 3 INY
( oﬂw_‘», =M TR TR NG 78 add NOHl = dl OB = A ANeOD = b3 w?ym»oﬁ% FNo <0 /
="m YO = 0¥ QVIHMIAO = H/O ~39VAV9 = uvd iSva = 3 ABINGO = ONOD ~ = XOdddy
\ peraen T e R i T U R R .
. AMVONNOB 0¥ONS Nonalne 4 3vd = m v = ‘dWINIW3SVE = 'IWS3 0330 = ' SNONINNLE = "hd

40




